65

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING

of the
l REGIONAL WATER PLANNING GROUP “I”
Wednesday, October 14, 2009 — 10:00 a.m.
Nacogdoches Recreation Center
1112 North Street, Nacogdoches, Texas

1. Call to Order — Chair Kelley Holcomb called the regular meeting to order at 10:15 a.m.

2. Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance —-Kelley Holcomb led the group in the Pledge of
Allegiance. David Alders gave the invocation.

3. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum —The roll was called by Lila Fuller and a quorum
was determined as follows:

Voting Members Present (17 of 22)
Kelley Holcomb
David Alders
Jeff Branick
David Brock
George P. Campbell
Jerry Clark
Josh David
Scott Hall
Mike Harbordt
William Heugel
Bill Kimbrough
Duke Lyons
Dale R. Peddy
Hermon Reed
Monty Shank
Darla Smith
J. Leon Young

Voting Members Absent (5)
Chris Davis
Glenda Kindle
Emest Mosby
Worth Whitehead
John Windham

Proxies:
George Campbell for Chris Davis
Monty Shank for Glenda Kindle
. Kelley Holcomb for Worth Whitehead

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region | ETRWPG 1
October 14, 2009




EF

Non-Voting Members Present:
None

Governmental Reporting Agencies Present:
Temple McKinnon, Texas Water Development Board
Terry D. Stelly, Texas Parks and Wildlife-CF

Other Guests Present:

Rex Hunt, Alan Plummer Associates, Project Consultant
Lauren Gonzalez, APAI

Simone Kiel, Freese and Nichols, Inc.

James Beach, LBG-Guyton Associates

John Martin, Southeast Texas GCD

Jim Jeffers, City of Nacogdoches

Mayor Roger Van Horn, City of Nacogdoches
Bill Jacobs, Lower Trinity GCD

Gary Graham, GE Walker & Assoc.

Mary C. Decker, Friends of Neches River
Billy D. Sims, KSA Engineers, Inc.

Jimmy Thompson, KSA Engineers, Inc.

Joe Freeland, Mathews & Freeland

- Tex Terry, Houston County WCID

Sherry Reed, Consolidated WSC

Mike Maiden, Houston Co. WCID

N.E. Breedlove, Woden Water Supply
Dan Simmons, Woden Water Supply

Len Luscomb, RCGCD

Tim Culp, Crockett EDC

Alan Draper, KSA Engineers, Inc.

Bill Tetley, Sierra Club

Chris von Doenhoff, Houston County WCID
Julie Shackelford, The Conservation Fund
James Flournoy, Klotz Associates, Inc.
Alan V. Thompson, Klotz Associates, Inc.
Jerry Shands, Southeast Texas GCD

Bill Goodrum, Forestar Group

John Stover, Zelesky Law Firm

Robert Gonzalez, Cherokean Herald
Marie Whitehead, Cherokean Herald
Terrie Gonzalez, Cherokean Herald

4. Consideration and Approval of the Minutes for the July 8, 2009 meeting. Chair Kelley

Holcomb referenced the minutes in the packet. Monty Shank moved to approve as
presented. The motion was seconded by Leon Young and unanimously passed.

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




67

5. Report from City of Nacogdoches — Lila Fuller stated her office had distributed the
newsletters that were prepared by Rex Hunt and his group. She stated this was the first
time using the bulk postage permit and that the RWPG saved over $50 in postage costs.

6. Reports from adjoining regions activity:

A. Region C — Mike Harbordt stated he was unable to attend the last Region C meeting
due to a last minute conflict. He reported that Region C was very active, but he was
unable to give an update on their most recent activities. Temple McKinnon reported
that Region C met on September 28 and approved the request to revise their population
and water demand projects, similar to what Region I was considering at this meeting.
She stated they were wrapping up their comment period. She reported that they will be
holding another meeting in November, and directed those interested to go the TWDB
website to view the documents associated with the Region C meeting.

B. Region D — Temple McKinnon stated they would be meeting October 15 in Mt.
Pleasant and would be discussing drought conditions in the state, the presence of giant
salvinia in Lake O’ the Pines, and the groundwater management process in the state.

C. Region H — David Alders reported that Region H held a meeting September 2 and
approved Chapters 1, 3 & 6. Temple McKinnon stated the next meeting was scheduled
for November 4 and she stated they had been having the Trinity/San Jacinto Bay Basin
group meeting after the Planning Group meetings, but she was unaware if they would be
having one in November. She also stated the Water Management Strategy Subcommittee
would be meeting October 29 in Houston to review revisions to Water User Group
shortages associated with comments from September 2, 2009 meeting and review
identified shortages by county, basin, and Wholesale Water Provider.

7. Reports from Standing Committees:

A. Executive Committee — No report.

B. Finance Committee — Darla Smith, chair reported the ETRWPG had received about
10% of the 2010 allocations from five counties. She stated the Finance Committee had
instructed the City of Nacogdoches to send reminder letters to the other counties at the
end of October.

C. Bylaws Committee — No report.
D. Technical Committee — Michael Harbordt stated the consultants would cover actions
taken by the Technical Committee later in the meeting. He thanked the consultants and

other Technical Committee members for a job well done.

E. Nominations Committee — George Campbell stated that John Windham, representative
in the Small Business category, would be submitting his resignation due to health

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




68

problems. Mr. Campbell encouraged anyone who would like to nominate someone for
this position should contact him and he would discuss the criteria that must be met for
the position.

8. _Reports from other state agencies:

A. Texas Parks & Wildlife Department — Terry Stelly with TPWD Port Arthur
distributed copies of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Magazine that contained an article on
Water in Texas. He also reported that he had attended a water conference at Rice
University and speaker Jace Houston with the San Jacinto Water Authority discussed
the same issues the ETRWG had been discussing in recent meetings. He spoke of the
problem getting participation from small water suppliers to join in regional activities.
Terry also stated Michael Flores with EPA - District 6, spoke and had some interesting
comments regarding the water planning process, and stated the regions were too
compartmentalized and should reach out to the other regions in their planning process.
Mr. Stelly also mentioned another topic discussed was water usage worldwide, and how
the United States was trying to decrease its dependency on foreign oil, yet were
depleting the water supply due to the high water concentrations to produce Ethanol.

B. Texas Department of Agriculture — No report.

9. Report from Texas Water Development Board Staff — Temple McKinnon with TWDB
reported the Water Conservation Advisory Council met in September and approved their
membership of eight members, who were mostly renewal memberships. She stated more
information on this Council can be obtained through the TWDB website. She stated GMA-
1T was scheduled to meet October 20 in Nacogdoches, and GMA-14 meets October 27 in
Conroe. Ms. McKinnon also reported on a handout she had provided for State Revolving
Fund Financial Assistant Workshops that will be conducted by TWDB throughout the state.
She stated the closest ones would be in Beaumont on November 19 and Dallas December 3.
For more information on these workshops, you may contact Barbara Vanecek with TWDB
at 512-463-7026.

10. Report from Consultant Team:

A. Discussion on Chapter 4 methodology and Status of Chapter 4 update —
Engineering consultant Rex Hunt of Alan Plummer Associates, Inc. stated his team would
give an update on the work on Chapter 4 and give a review of Draft Chapters 7, 8 and 9.

Simone Kiel of Freese and Nichols, Inc. explained the status of Draft Chapter 4 and
methodology for evaluation of water user groups’ (WUGs) supply and demand and
projected needs. Currently projectsions for the region indicate an anticipated shortfall on
meeting water demands of approximately 174,000 acre-feet per year, by year 2060. This
projected shortage will be met by implementation of water management strategies, which
will be implemented by the region’s WUGs. Ms. Kiel stated there were currently 63
individual WUGS in Region I with water shortages. Approximately half of the projected
shortfall is due to anticipated steam-electric power water demands in the planning cycle.

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




B. Discussion on Draft Chapters 7, 8 and 9 — Rex Hunt reviewed the anticipated changes
to Chapters 7-9 of the Regional Water Plan to be presented to the ETRWPG at the next
meeting in December. He explained these chapters would address how the plan is
consistent with protection of natural resources, provide recommendations regarding unique
stream segments and reservoir sites, and outline anticipated infrastructure funding
requirements for the region. Mr. Hunt stated Chapter 7 described consistency of the plan
with protection of water sources, agricultural resources and natural resources. Chapter 8
addressed ETRWPG recommendations for Unique Stream Segments and Unique Sites for
reservoir construction, while Chapter 9 tasks include sending surveys to water user groups
in the region to determine infrastructure development and funding sources.

Mr. Hunt outlined the timeline for the 2011 Water Plan as follows:

- February 2010 — Initially Prepared Plan (IPP) vote
- Public comment period

- September 2010 — Final plan adopted

- TWDB comment period

- December 2010 — Process complete

At this time, Chair Holcomb moved to agenda Item No. 14-B for discussion.

14. New Business.
B. Consideration and Possible Approval of a request from Houston County WCID
No. 1 to amend their available water supply.

Tex Terry, general manager with the Houston County WCID gave a brief history of the
water district and improvements made to the water district over the years.

Alan Draper introduced others in the audience that were present regarding this agenda
item and gave a presentation regarding their request. He stated currently Houston
County WCID was only permitted for 3,500/acre feet and TCEQ would not allow them
to sell water above this limit. He explained Houston County WCID continued to
receive requests for additional water, and had lost some potential businesses in the
county due to their not being able to meet the raw water needs. Mr. Draper explained
that Consolidated Water Supply is currently requesting to buy additional water, as they
have been approached by two businesses looking to locate in Houston County. He
stated Houston County WCID had submitted a request to TCEQ for additional yield
above the 3,500/acre feet per year, but it is currently on hold because it is not consistent
with the 2006 Regional Water Plan.

Mr. Draper stated Houston County WCID was requesting two things of the ETRWPG:
1. Houston County is considered for potential industrial steam-electric usage.
2. Consider allowing surface water be used in conjunction with groundwater to
offset the future needs of Houston County.
3. Consider current water obligations of Houston County and see a similar
statement that was in the 2001 State Water Plan that the district pursues the
additional water.

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009

69




70

Chair Holcomb asked Rex Hunt if any of the data for the water demands as presented
had been included in the 2011 Water Plan.

Simone Kiel stated the water demands of Consolidated Water Supply Corp were less
than what was presented, and the contract demands were not shown. She stated they
needed to coordinate it to make sure they were showing the correct data.

Temple McKinnon was asked how the ETRWPG would be affected regarding any
change today and the comment period. Temple explained the 14 day comment period
began after approval of the amended numbers.

Simone explained that they needed to verify where the demand is located, as sometimes
the demand is outside the county, but the supply is located inside the county.

Tim Culp, Crockett EDC appeared and stated there were two potential projects looking
to locate in Houston County, one being a secondary site for a project located in
Tyler/Nacogdoches County and the second a biochemical plant. He further stated they
had to turn down two projects that they could provide everything for, but they could not
meet their water demand needs.

Rex Hunt stated that the ETRWPG would need more information regarding the capacity
of potential uses in order to have accurate data to make a determination of the amount
of the demand for this use. He stated the ETRWPG had decided not to change steam-
electric demand in the 2011 Plan, with the exception of Angelina County to meet the
needs of the Aspen Plant.

David Alders commented that economic development affects more than steam-electric
and was curious if Houston County would be constrained by steam-electric when their
water supply needs might be much broader than that. He further asked how that played
out with the permitted yield of Houston County Lake. He stated he would like to
accommodate Houston County where we could, but was unclear as to what needed to be
done.

Simone Kiel stated when developing the water demands they use the models as
prescribed by TWDB, which is based on current water customers. She stated they
would need to work with Houston County to get accurate information to include water
supply needs for future customers.

Leon Young stated it was his understanding that all Houston County was trying to do
was get back the additional 3,500 feet/acre that they had but let go, and TCEQ just
wanted the Region to bless that.

Jeff Branick stated he would have a problem with denying them the opportunity to
utilize economic development just because they did not have the ability to meet the
contractual obligations. He asked what the need would have been for the two industries

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




71

that wanted to come in, and it was stated 1 million gallons/day for one and 2/million
l gallons/day for the other.

Judge Lonnie Hunt, Houston County appeared and stated his county was currently in a
box and couldn’t get to the industrial side of it anymore. He stated they were asking
that the ETRWPG put them back to where they were previously were at 7,000 acre/feet
per year.

Leon Young moved that the ETRWPG support the request to increase the water right
permit for Houston County Lake to 7,000 acre-feet/year. J erry Clark seconded the
motion.

George Campbell asked if Mr. Draper was aware if any study of underground water
supply for Houston County had been done that would indicate any adverse effect for
additional use, or if any work had been done to address future planning for surface
water use? Mr. Draper said he could only refer to the 2006 Region I Water Plan that
indicated an excess of groundwater supply for Houston County and stated he was not
aware of any additional studies.

Sherry Reed, general manager for Consolidated Water Supply Corporation stated they
had been fined for not meeting the requirements of TCEQ for their surface water
contract. She stated if this request was not approved, they would not be able to meet
their obligations with TCEQ because Houston County would not have the water to sell

l to them.

Simone Kiel stated that the way the change could be reflected in the 2011 plan was in
the area of Wholesale Water Providers, where they had a great amount of flexibility.
She stated that Houston County Lake has the capacity to store close to 7,000 acre
feet/year. When asked, she clarified that the additional 3,500 acre feet/year was not
obligated in any other area of the plan.

Scott Hall stated Houston County needed this change to be made in the 2006 Regional
Water Plan, that they couldn’t wait for the change to be made in the 2011 Regional
Water Plan.

Alan Draper stated that he had been told by TCEQ that if the ETRWPG approved the
change today, they would continue processing the permit for approval based on the
proposed 2011 Regional Water Plan.

Chairman Holcomb called for a vote and all members present voted unanimously on the
motion.

Chairman Holcomb recessed the meeting for a ten-minute break at 11:40 a.m.

' The meeting reconvened at 11:53 P.M.

11. Educational Presentation: No presentation was given.

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




72

12. Public Comment — Joe Freeland representing the City of Tyler appeared regarding Agenda
Item 13-A “Consideration and Approval of Population and Water Demand Revisions,
process for making revisions based on comments received during public comment period
and approval for submittal to the TWDB.”

Mr. Freeland provided a handout to members and presented the following:

The East Texas Water Planning Group is contemplating two decisions affecting the
determination and allocation of water demands within the planning area — (1)
population projects for municipal water user groups and (2) manufacturing water
demand projections. The following is a summary of Tyler’s comments and concern:

* The population projections for the City of Tyler in the 2006 Region I Plan
grossly understate Tyler’s actual population and these inaccurate numbers
should not be carried into the 2011 Region I Plan.

o Tyler’s current population exceeds the projected 2030 population in the
plan.

o Tyler wishes to start working with the planning group to change the 2006
and 2011 Regional Plans to contain more realistic population projects for
Tyler.

o Tyler requests that the planning group delay approving population and
demand figures until the group addresses Tyler’s population, and the
populations of other areas of the region that have grown faster than
anticipated in the 2006 Region I Plan as identified in the Phase II Scope
of Work.

'® The Region I Planning Group should reject changing manufacturing demand in
Jefferson County based on the anticipated water demand associated with two
LNG facilities.

o No objective documentation exists to justify the increased manufacturing
demand. Neither LNG plant is currently authorized to use a LNG
vaporization method that would consume the enormous amounts of
water sought by the change.

o The water use contemplated for the LNG facilities would amount to
“waste.” Far more water efficient methods exist to vaporize LNG,
including new technologies that generate significant amounts of fresh
water condensate rather than consume fresh water.

o Realistic increases in manufacturing uses can be incorporated into
subsequent plans once actual water uses have been identified.

Chairman Holcomb thanked Mr. Freeland for his comments and stated the population
projections were an issue that is always studied extensively and was never taken lightly.
He explained the biggest issues for the planning group was that population projections
were based on guesswork in a sense, and that the planning group wants to make sure
that they are consistent in the numbers for the region as a whole.

Minutes approved 12/9/09 Region I ETRWPG
October 14, 2009




